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ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS
ACRONYM

DESCRIPTION

BEE				Black Economic Empowerment
CCC				Construction Contact Centres
CE				Civil Engineering
CETA				Construction Education And Training Authority
CIDB				
Construction Industry Development Board
CIETS				
Civil Engineering Industries Training Scheme
CDP				Contractor Development Programme
COT 				City Of Tshwane
ECDP				
Emerging Contractors Development Programme
ELIDZ				
East London Industrial Development Zone
EM				eThekwini Municipality
EPWP				
Expanded Public Works Programme
GB				General Building
INK				
Inanda – Ntuzuma – Kwamashu Nodal Area
ME				Mechanical Engineering
NCI				National Construction Incubator
NDPW				
National Department Of Public Works
NMBMM			
Nelson Mandela Bay Metropolitan Municipality
PDI				Previously Disadvantaged Individual
PI				Professional Indemnity
SAFCEC			
South African Federation Of Civil Engineering Contractors
SAQA
South African Qualifications Authority
SAQI				South African Quality Institute
SARS				South African Revenue Services
SAWIC				
South African Women In Construction
NCI				National Construction Incubator
SDL				Skills Development Levy
SW				Specialist Works
SEDA				Small Enterprise Development Agency
SMME				
Small Micro Medium Enterprises
STP				Seda Technology Programme
ERWIC			
Empowerment & Recognition of Women in Construction
UIF				Unemployment Insurance Fund
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1. INTRODUCTION
associated risks. This
Report should be read in
conjunction with our full
set of Annual Financial
Statements (AFS) as this
offers a comprehensive
overview of our financial
performance.
The
information
contained
herein refers to the
performance of NCI as a
About The Report
This
Annual
Report whole.
presents the financial,
Forward-Looking
technical,
operational,
social and environmental Statements
performance
of
the This Annual Report may
National
Construction contain certain forwardIncubator
for
the looking statements that
neither
reported
2020/2021 financial year are
results
nor
(1 April 2020 to 31 March financial
2021).
Our
progress based on historical fact,
towards
cohesive but constitute current
thinking
is
reflected expectations based on
in
our
performance reasonable assumptions,
indicators
that
cover data or methods, and are
financial and non-financial not a guarantee of future
matters, as well as our results. These forwardstrategy, mandate and looking statements are,
NCI’s Annual Report is
prepared based on the
principles and elements
of the National Treasury
Annual Report Guide
for Public Entities and
the King IV Report on
Corporate Governance for
South Africa (2016).
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The pivotal points of this
report are the Annual
performance information,
Governance and Audited
financial
information.  
These areas are a fair
representation of the
operational performance,
financial position and
financial performance of
National
Construction
Incubator. The report is
prepared in compliance
with the framework for
the
preparation
and
presentation of financial
statements as well as
the generally recognised
accounting
practice
Assurance
and standards.
Reporting Framework
Responsibility
NCI’s
assurance
is Board
provided to the Board of and Approval
Trustees by management, The Board is accountable
NCI Risk and Compliance, for the integrity and
of
the
NCI Internal Audit function completeness
Report
and
and other Board and Annual
supplementary
Management Committees. any

by their nature, subject
to
significant
known
or unknown risks and
uncertainties.
They
include, without limitation,
statements relating to
NCI’s business prospects,
future
developments,
trends and conditions in
the construction industry
and built environment.
NCI neither intends to, nor
assumes an obligation
to update or revise
any
forward-looking
statements, arising from
either new information,
future events or otherwise.

information,
and
is
supported by various
Board Committees. The
Board
approved
the
2020/2021 Annual Report
and Annual Financial
Statements on the 17
September 2021, after
having considered the
completeness
of
the
material
items
dealt
with and the reliability of
information presented and
the assurance process
followed. The consolidated
financial statements were
prepared and audited
in accordance with the
requirements of the Public
Finance Management Act
of 1999 and Companies
Act of 2008.
Approved by

Mr. L. Dhlomo
Chairperson

2. STATEMENT BY THE CHAIRPERSON

T

here are many fairy
tales and real stories
about looking back
and beliefs around it. It
is a business practice
worth noting, to look back
at the distance travelled,
admire the achievements
accumulated and, study
the pitfalls that were
experienced,
and
look
forward with new experience
and knowledge. This is the
report about the year that
should be written indelibly
in the history of the National
Construction
Incubator.
The year started with new
management working in a
new structure and strategy,
which had been designed
under the leadership which
had left the organization. It
is important to highlight that
even the Board of Trustees
was fairly new.
The words of Charles
Dickens, “it was the best
of the times; it was the
worst of the times … it
was the spring of hope, it
was the winter of despair”
best fit the period covered
by this report, 2020/21. As

the financial year started
the major challenge was
to assure our funders that
the organization has the
potential to deliver, in spite
of the existing financial
challenges that had been
unexpectedly become a
threat. The time required
a sound decision backed
by the pragmatic steps to
steer NCI in the midst of the
stormy ocean. What made
things even more difficult
was the first ever Lockdown
Level 5, which brought the
whole country to a standstill.
With branch offices spread
in a number of Provinces
NCI had to device the
strategy to operate virtually,
a totally new way of doing
business. It was a matter of

‘adapt or die’.
Those who understand
music will agree with me that
transition is one of the major
tests for the singer. It requires
focus and knowledge. It
requires definiteness of
purpose yet a professional
approach. At NCI there was
no room for excuse at any
point, but all focus had to
be on achievement of set
targets and keeping the
organization alive.
As I look back I thank the
fellow trustees who never
lost focus and worked
with management to craft
winning
ways,
without
compromising
corporate
governance. At times tough
decisions had to be made to
ensure that NCI remains in
operation.
I convey a message of
gratitude to the CEO and
Management for steering
and guiding the boat even
when we were in the middle
of the storm. We confidently
present this report because
they
maneuvered
and
shifted from regularity when
circumstances demanded

such.
Sacrifices
made
during this period pop up in
mind when we prepare this
report, and I feel it will be a
serious omission if a word of
gratitude is not conveyed to
both management and staff.
We started the financial year
with uncertainty when most
companies were adversely
affected by the Lockdown
and Covid-19 which hit
businesses
differently.
The construction sector
has taken time to recover
from the effects of the
pandemic. Our funders are
the reason why the National
Construction
Incubator
completed the financial year,
in March 2021, still counted
amongst the best enterprise
supporting organizations.
The
Small
Enterprise
Development
Agency,
NCI main funder, remains
at the centre of NCI’s
success. Seda’s presence
is appreciated and valued.
We are grateful for the
funding and support from
Seda. We convey words
of appreciation to valuable
stakeholders who have their

main mandate, yet they have
chosen the NCI as one of their
delivery vehicles. Amongst
those there is Transnet,
eThekwini Municipality, Nelson
Mandela Bay Metropolitan
Municipality, East London
Industrial Development Zone,
National
Department
of
Public Works, Construction
Industry Development Board,
uMhlathuze Municipality and
many more. We value the
partnership because it gives
rise to more entrepreneurs
and brings hope when others
are on the brink of giving up.
We wish you well as you page
through this report and we
hope to get more views that
will make NCI live up the real
meaning of its potential. We
promise to avail ourselves
to explore avenues that will
enrich the construction sector.

Mr. L. Dhlomo
Chairperson
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3. STATEMENT BY THE CEO

“

Regulatory Environment of
the
Construction
Industry
Development Board (cidb)
which is an enabler for active
economic participations by
Construction SMME’s.

IN THE MIDST OF
COVID-19 PANDEMIC AND
ITS CHALLENGES; OUR
CONSTRUCTION SMME’s
REMAINED RESILIENT….

A

nnual Report is one
of the most essential
communication platforms
to all our Stakeholders and
those keen on knowledge about
NCI. It outlines the ins and out
of the organization including the
performance as well the how
funding was utilized.
Finding myself crafting the
Foreword for the 2020/2021
Annual Report comes as
a rainbow after the heavy
storm.
The statement talks
to the survival of the NCI and
the future it is facing after the
first Covid-19 Lockdown that
occurred unexpectedly.
The organization has continued
to pull through in spite of the
challenges that were brought
about by the pandemic which
resulted into slowing down
and halting of some of the
activities which impacted on the
organization’s performance and
financials.
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NCI Mandate
NCI’s mandate is to develop
emerging contractors through
the infusion of both technical
and business administration
skills that are aligned with the
introduction of technology to
enhance the efficiency and
effective management of their
businesses.
The Incubator is aimed at
providing support to selected
participants for a period of
three years by which time each
emerging contractor should
have advanced by at least one
financial level above their entry
point on the CIDB register
and be capable of operating
unassisted in the open market.
Strategic Plan
To continue with the Technical,
Financial and Technological
empowerment of Construction
SMME’s to grow within the

Performance Highlights
Despite the Covid-19 Pandemic
that disrupted the Organization’s
business activities, NCI has
been able to excel in its
targets of supporting SMME’s
for Business Development
Program by 349% and 101% of
new job opportunities created.
There was however, a decrease
in
sustaining
initial
and
temporary job opportunities as
a result of Industry’s uncertainty
that occurred during at the peak
of the Pandemic.
Proportionally, the reduction
in sustaining jobs yielded a
reduction of SMMEs annual
turnover by 42,1% against the
set target.
Empowerment of Youth and
Women-owned
construction
companies remains at the core
of NCI’s strategic deliverable
and thus both the targets
were excellently met and the
organization
continues
to
commit in uplifting the said
category of SMME’s as part of
the National Development Plan
2030.
Turn-Around Strategy 2021/
2022

With the above 2020/2021
performance highlights, NCI
is embarking on a strategy
that is aiming at business
continuity and improvement
in the era of Covid-19 that
has become a new-normal
of conducting business while
social distancing and other
Regulatory requirements are
adhered to with health & safety
of NCI staff, the Funders and
other Stakeholders as well as
our SMMEs at heart.
The strategy will focus on the
following key aspects of NCI’s
business:
• Sustainability of NCI
• Diversified
Revenue
Streams and Fundraisers
Platform
• Extended scope of NCI
• to cater for Built environment
Professional Practitioners
• Introduction of Localization
Program for Construction
Products
Local
Manufacturers
• Funders’ oversight and
party-interest role at the
Board’s level.
Appreciation
This is an ample opportunity
for me to express gratitude
to all SMMEs who were in
NCI’s various programs in
branches
nationwide
for
showing resilience during the
2020/2021 Financial Year which

is a year that was associated
with the deadly virus outbreak
of Corona/ Covid-19.   A life of
one of our SMMEs was lost in
a process. Our condolences to
family remain in hearts.
Words can’t express my
appreciation to NCI staff who
were directly affected by the
hardship that occurred and they
chose to remain dedicated to
their work and loyal to the NCI
– which gives light that with
the turn around strategy, NCI
will become the Employer of
Choice.
Sincerest gratitude to my
Principals, i.e. NCI Board
members for their unwavering
and unbiased support of the
organization. They have made
NCI their first home away from
home – it made a huge difference
like a road less travelled.
To our stakeholders and funders,
we have all experienced the
difficulties of the year under
review but you remained
standing by our side. Your
contributions make it possible
for NCI to fulfil its mandate and
for that we are continuously
grateful for your partnership in
our journey.
Thank you! Thank You! Thank
You!

Ms Patt Chalwa

Chief Executive Officer

4. ABOUT THE ORGANISATION

E

stablished in 2006, National
Construction Incubator (NCI)
is a public benefit organisation
mandated to develop and mentor
emerging construction companies in
South Africa. The core business of NCI
is to develop emerging contractors
through the infusion of both technical
and business administration skills
that are aligned with the introduction
of technology in order to enhance the
efficiency and effective management
of their businesses.
The Incubator is aimed at providing
support to selected participants for a
period of three years by which time
each emerging contractor should
have advanced by at least one
financial level above their entry point

on the CIDB register and be capable
of operating unassisted in the open
market. Should a particular contractor
not wish to advance more than one
CIDB financial grading, an alternative
primary indicator will be agreed,
possibly “gross income/turnover” if
multiple smaller projects are deemed
to be the niche market of the particular
contractor.
The construction incubation model is
one of the interventions, if not the only
one that can make a significant impact
to addressing the challenges faced
by emerging contractors in South
Africa. Most construction businesses
(SMME) veto the services offered by
the NCI as one of the solutions with
regards to business and technical

skills shortage. There is consensus
amongst the majority of client bodies
that the model offers a good strategy to
assist emerging contractors. The level
of formality the model brings to the
industry is also widely acknowledged
and appreciated.
NCI provides support in three
phases of development of emerging
contractors: tender phase support,
construction phase support and
general administration support. We
have identified these areas as being
the most critical in terms of need
for development and mentorship
interventions.
NCI has the capacity and skills
to develop and mentor emerging

construction companies ranging from
CIDB Grade1 to CIDB 5 including
contractors with disabilities. For the
effective development of the emerging
contractor, a certain selection and
development criteria is engineered
to ensure that these contractors are
competent in the industry. To date,
the National Construction Incubator
supports more than 1000 construction
businesses in South Africa.
NCI has also evolved and widen its
scope of operation over the past year
by opening its services to the entire
built environment. New innovative
programmes are being explored to
ensure that NCI support not only
contractors but other players within
the industry including professionals.
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5. STRATEGIC IDENTITY
Vision
To be sustainable leading construction
incubator and centre of excellence in
the development of competitive Small
Medium Enterprises through business,
technical and innovative interventions
within the built environment.
Mission
To enhance the capacity of SMEs in the
built environment through enterprise
development by enabling structured
infusion of business, technical and
technology interventions which leads to
sustainable businesses, significant job
creation and a positive contribution to
the South African Economy.
Values
• Innovation and Excellence
• Leadership and Accountability
• Integrity and Respect
• Commitment and Honesty
• Reliability and Teamwork
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NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION INCUBATOR
Our Mandate

The core business of NCI is to develop
emerging contractors through the infusion of
both technical and business administration
skills that are aligned with the introduction
of technology in order to enhance the
efficiency and effective management of their
businesses

Our Overall Objective

The incubator is aimed at providing support
to selected participants for a period of
three years by which time each emerging
contractor should have advanced by at least
one financial level above their entry point on
the CIBD register, be capable of operating
unassisted in the open market

Organisational Units



•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Business Mentorship
Technical Mentorship
Finance and Administration
Department
Facilities Department
Training Unit
Marketing and Stakeholder Relations
Human Resources
Monitoring and Evaluation Department

6. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

COSEC
(outsourced)

Board of Trustees

Risk Management
& Audit
(Outsourced)

CEO
Stakeholder/ Media
Liaison Officer

Executive PA
Executive Manager
Finance

Head-Contractor
Development &
Training
Program
Co-ordinator

Finance
Administrator

Accountant

Area Managers
(Per Region, Per
Program)

HR Manager

ICT Technician

Assets/
Infrastructure
Officer

Admin/ G.W / Receptionist
(Branches/ Program +
H.O)
Contractor Development
Trainer (Per Program)

Business Development
Officers (Per Program)

Technical Mentors (Per
Program)
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7. NCI BOARD MEMBERS

Mr. C. Mnguni
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8. NCI SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Patt Chalwa
CEO

Vacant

Facilities Manager

Mr. Sandile Matiwane

Executive Manager Finance

Ms. Yandi Jiya

Exc Manager Support Services

Marketing
and Stakeholder
Vacant
Marketing
and
Relations Stakeholder
Relations

Ms. Nonela Mxokozeli

Head Contractor Development

Vacant

Human Resources Manager
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1. SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS
1.1 Programme Delivery Environment
The National Construction Incubator is aimed at providing support and capacity building to
selected participants (aspiring and emerging contractors and their employees) for a defined
period (traditionally for three years) but depending on the specification of each programme
and the objectives of the funder, interventions can be for 6 – 36 months. Plan has also been
underway to widen the scope to service the entire built environment.
The year under review has been tainted by a number of new challenges in addition
to what the sector is experiencing and has been experiencing over the past couple
of years. Nevertheless as the organisation we remained committed to our value
proposition which is outlined as follows:
Contractors and Built-environment Professional Practitioners - Our
development programs allow the built-environment to be capacitated with
technical and business skills that enables them to play a meaningful role in
the sector and remain profitable and sustainable
Stakeholders - We ensure to align to the objectives of our stakeholders
making certain that the resources allocated to the program produce the
expected results while allowing our stakeholders to fulfil their aspirations
and deliverables.
Sector - A viable and vibrant sector is made up by profitable,
growing and sustainable enterprises, our promise is to ensure that
the output from our programs contributes towards development
of skills, building sustainable contractors and professional
practitioners within the built-environment.
1.2 Performance Contributing Factors
The year 2020/2021 has proven to be one of the
challenging years’ in the history of NCI’s existence
while upholding the mandate of supporting emerging
contractors. National Construction Incubator is one of
the major players in the development of emerging
contractors in South Africa. NCI’s impact has grown
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from strength to strength over the years, supporting entrepreneurs, building sustainable enterprises
and assisting them to create jobs. However, during this financial year under review 2020/2021 NCI
experienced several challenges relating to financial instability which resulted in an organization
operating as a Going Concern and working towards a turnaround plan. The sector has had its
share of challenges as a result of the decline in construction industry which also drives down
profitability in the sector. Private sector projects investment continues to be under strain because
of gloomy outlook for economic growth.
The impact of Covid 19 as well did not make things easier for the business. With the challenges
at hand, the success that have been achieved over the past years cannot be ignored and
it can be a foundation in which the organization find strength to turn things around. The
entire leadership continued towards striving to achieve sustainability and the vision of the
organization, bring all operations on track and still strive to take the organization and
the industry to greater heights.  The impact of Covid affected the business significantly
and forced management to adopt a number of solutions to salvage the situation and
some of those were challenging to implement as they affected the human capital of
the organization.
NCI remained committed to working tirelessly to support and develop emerging
contractors in South Africa. Despite the challenges facing the entire operating
environment, NCI continued to establish and secure strategic partnerships in
an effort to ensure sustainability and high level of performance.
The mandate of the organisation has therefore been reviewed to ensure
that NCI remains relevant not only to emerging contractors but to the
entire construction sector and or built environment. NCI endeavoured
to execute its mandate within the available resources in terms of
financial resources, human capital and infrastructure.  NCI explored
all avenues available to ensure that is adjust its operations inline
with the demand forced by the pandemic to business processes.
The overall performance of the organization was slightly lower
compared to the past years whereby few targets were met with
some partly achieved and others not achieved. Continuous
commitment from the entire team remained evident in ensuring
that the organization fulfils its mandate and leverage its key
elements of success.

1.3 NCI Key Elements Of Success
Resource
In-house Mentors/
Staff

Sub-resource

Rationale

In-House Professionals including
construction management
professionals, civil engineers,
architects and electrical engineers. In
seldom cases there would be a need
for quantity surveyors.

The rationale behind using in-house mentors is based on the fact that contractors may need
professional advice as and when required i.e. because mentors work for the incubator they are
committed to the incubator on a full time basis. The outsourced mentors allocate a certain amount
of time and they may not be available when the contractors need them. It also becomes difficult
to budget for outsourced mentors as they charge per time spent. A budget process for in-house
mentors is much easier and direct as they are paid a fixed salary per annum. In most instances they
are employed on a three-year contract.

Business Development

Business Development Officers

Whilst mentors are for core technical skills, Business Development Officers are responsible for soft
side of the business and their duties include the following:
Compliance including CIDB renewals, CIPC, Tax compliance, Department of labour, etc.
Computer skills training, assistance with preparation of financial statements and notifying contractors
of tender opportunities as advertised on online-tender platforms.

Physical Infrastructure

Office Space

The main purpose for the existence of the incubator is to bring some form of formality to emerging
contractors and as such the issue of administration space becomes critical. The office space enables
the contractors to have a conducive environment for the pricing of documents, bookkeeping and
keeping of records in one place. Both incubator staff and contractors share this facility. This brings
an element of professionalism to the business incubated. This facility is for meeting purposes for
both staff and contractors.

Board Room Facilities

Resource Centre

The resource centre will be equipped with all construction related software programmes. These
are software programmes that are used by big companies. The idea behind this is to introduce big
companies’ practices to small contractors.
Other services include shared reception space, use of internet, installed telephone lines, etc.

Other
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2. NCI PROGRAMMES

The NCI programme has four
programme phases with specific
intervention packages that ensure
holistic
development
of
the
contractor.
For effective development of the
emerging contractor, during the
development of the contractor,
efficient allocation of resources and
programme design is kept relevant
to the contemporary need of the
emerging contracting business as
well as the industry.
The NCI model has four programme
phases:
• Outreach Programme
• Pre-Incubator Programme
• Mainstream Incubation
• Post Incubation
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The Outreach Programme

The Pre-Incubation Programme

The Outreach Programme in principle
becomes a programme through which for
a 6-month period, an aspiring construction
contracting business is being introduced to
the construction environment and industry
so that the business is at a state of compliance
for the Pre-Incubator programme at the end
of 6 months. This is achieved through:

The Pre-Incubator Programme may be defined as
the programme through which for a period of (18
months), an emerging CIDB Grade 1 and 2 contractor
business - is supported for the purposes of:
Keeping his / her compliance status up to date;
Tendering support for acquisition of projects for
possible upgrade to the CIDB Grade 3 and 4 within
12 months.

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Information Session and Workshops
Networking Platforms
Compliance support
Virtual office facilities i.e. internet
and email resources, faxing services,
boardroom facilities, messaging services
(reception)
Business Development (Advisory)
And tendering support.

Business Development (Advisory) Services;
Marketing and Business Plan Development,
Information and Networking Platforms,
Some structured training and support
Virtual office facilities with industry technology
applications.

The Mainstream Incubator Programme

Post-Incubation Programme

The Mainstream Incubator Programme may be defined
as the programme through which for the duration of 2
to 3 years, an emerging CIDB Grade 3 to 5 constructioncontracting businesses are supported for readiness to
join the Mainstream Incubator programme at the end
of the 12 months - through:
• Business Development (Advisory) Services;
• Marketing and Business Plan Development,
• Information and x Platforms,
• Support workshops.
• Office facilities as well as industry technology
applications,
• Tender Phase, Construction Phase and Post Tender
Phase Support;
• Structured Training i.e. Short Skills programmes
and / or Learnerships.

The Post-Incubation Programme may be defined as the programme
through which for the duration of the year, graduation contractors at
the year of completion of the Mainstream Incubator Programme, on the
sole discretion of the National Construction Incubator may apply and be
granted the Post Incubator Status.
Largely these contracting businesses as would be regarded to carry
the programmes alumnus status, may be expected to also support the
Incubator Programme through offering:
•
•
•
•

Their contracting business as the brand ambassadors of the
programme at least for the duration of the Post Incubation
Employment and sub-contracting opportunities to participating
contracting businesses in the programme
Business and Technical advice and support to participating contracting
businesses in the programme
Participate in the workshopping, information and networking events
for the participating contracting businesses in the programme
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3. NCI FOOTPRINT NETWORK
Province			Resources Centres

NCI footprint has changed during
the year under review.
This is
due to programmes coming to an
end therefore programme linked
branches also closing. A strategic
decision was taken during the year
under review that the footprint of
NCI will no longer be limited to the
Office Space, however guided by
the Funder’s Program anywhere
nationally under the use of resource
centres. The performance of National
Construction Incubator in delivering
its mandate during year 2020/2021
has been conducted under the
following footprint network which
scales across four provinces.
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Footprint Network		
KwaZulu Natal		
Durban
								
KwaMashu
								Dundee
								Empangeni
								uMhlathuze
				
Eastern Cape

Mthatha
								Port Elizabeth
								East London
				
Gauteng
		
								

Atteridgeville
Spartan

				

Steelport

Limpopo

		

4. ORGANISATIONAL PERFORMANCE
4.1
Performance Reporting Framework
There is a continuous growing demand for the National Construction incubator
to improve its delivery systems in carrying out its mandate to support enterprises
within the built environment and achieve the set targets and standard of
performance. This report therefore aims to present information for the interest of
NCI’s stakeholders and partners with regards to performance of the organisation
for the year under review and to report on the performance of the organisation as
measured against the pre-determined strategic objectives and targets as set out
in the Strategic Plan in line with 2020/2021 financial year targets.
The report on performance information is in accordance with the requirements of
the guidelines on the annual report as issued by National Treasury and Annual
Report Framework. Section 195 of the constitution requires that government
and government funded entities use their resources efficiently, economically
and effectively to run a developmental orientated administration, accountable
administration and provide timely accessible and accurate information.
4.2
Progress on Performance Targets
The performance information presented in this report fairly reflects the operations
and actual outputs against planned targets for performance indicators as per the
strategic and programme performance plan of the organisation for the financial
year ended 31 March 2021. The report is presented by indicators and targets
that reflect performance information that is analysed at programme level inline
with key performance indicators identifying emerging trends that show how these
contribute to the overall annual targets.
Despite the challenges within the year under review, there are specific areas in
which the organisations met its targets while other areas of performance were
not achieved. NCI has also ensured that a system of internal controls has been
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of
performance information.
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5. ORGANISATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
The figure below outlines overall
performance of NCI in various KPI’s for
ease of tracking performance and identify
risk of non-performance accordingly. The
effects of Covid 19 affected some branches
which contributed to low performance of
other key performance areas. It is however
pleasing to report that out of seven key
performance indicators as per STP targets,
four were achieved. The number of jobs
created was slightly above target and the
significant contribution took place during
quarter four as all sectors were going
back to their operations. The target of
youth and women supported through NCI
programmes were also exceeded. The
number of jobs sustained was not met as a
result of the construction sector being also
greatly affected by lockdown and a number
of jobs were lost in the process. It also
became impossible to achieve the target
of accumulative turnover since almost
three quarters of the financial year under
review presented none to minimal work for
contractors due to lockdown.
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6. NCI PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE
6.1
Outreach Programme
During the third quarter of the year
under review, the outreach programme
was launched for the current year in
November 2020. NCI’s key deliverable
of the programme was to recruit SMME’s
within the Built Environment to participate
in NCI’s mentorship programme for a
period of six (6) months. We are very
pleased that a total of forty-five (45)
SMME’s were recruited and leverage the
following services:
•
•
•
•

Introduction to industry regulations
Develop Marketing strategies and
material
Business Planning and Profiles, and
Creation of networks on respective
businesses.

6.2
Pre incubation programme
In the financial year 2020/2021, NCI have
supported 250 contractors in branches
across all provinces. Most Incubatees
were in their last year of the NCI’s
programmes and were thus provided with
the following interventions:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Structured Training on
Entrepreneurship
Conduct Impact Assessment Surveys
Collation of Portfolio of Evidence and
Provision of Financial Management
Templates and Control Documents
Succession Planning in respective
businesses as well as Certification
and Graduation.

6.3
Mainstream Incubation
Programme
During the year under review NCI have
supported 200 contractors with Business
Development and Technical Support
Services. Contractors in the Mainstream
are key to the overall performance of NCI
in terms of other target for the year. We
are pleased to note that these incubatees
have contributed immensely with new job
opportunities and revenue generation in
branches. The service offerings in this
group included:
•
•
•

•
•

6.4
Post Incubation Programme
Post Incubation is a strategic area for
NCI as it is covered in objective number
seven of the strategic plan. This level of
engagement is for incubatees beyond
the three (3) years and still in need of
NCI support and able to support NCI’s
reporting against its targets. In 2020/2021
financial year, NCI supported thirtyfive (35) contractors in its portfolio from
different branches. Contractors in this
programme received services on onsite
support and desktop support for technical
service offerings.

Structured Training and
Entrepreneurship as offered in most
branches in 2021/22
Technical Onsite and Desktop
support including – Health and Safety;
Cashflow projections and project
finance and Contracts Management
Business Development Services on
compliance, Labour regulations and
Tax Compliance.
Payment Certificates and Material
Management and Scheduling.
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SECTION C
NCI BUSINESS
AND STRATEGY
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1. NCI STRATEGY OVERVIEW
1.1 Strategic Objectives
The report on performance for the year under review has been
underpinned under the strategic document which outlines the strategic
direction of the organisation for five years which was extended to 2024
to allow the new management to have its full scope of five years to
deliver on the strategy.
The following seven strategic objectives were adopted as still relevant
by the leadership of the organisation in taking the organisation forward
on the strategy review session that was held at the beginning of the
financial year under review. The leadership was very critical at the
phase in which NCI is at because the organisation is in transition to a
more sustainable business. The leadership viewpoint is about aligning
resourcing of the organisation and all employees to focus their energy
towards realising the vision of the organisation through compliance and
adhering to ethical conduct.
Each objective has its own strategic items which underpins the objective
and should inform the action items to be considered towards achieving
each objective. Some of the action items have been reviewed to align
to the current state of the organisation in relation to available resources.
The action items will spread across all three terms which are short
(these were to be delivered within the year under review), medium and
long term.
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

Objective 1

Objective 5

To become a self-sustainable
organisation

Be a technologically driven
organisation

Objective 2

Objective 6

Improve and develop business
systems

Build an organisation that is a
centre of excellence

Objective 3

Objective 7

Be a people centred
organisation

Enhance post-graduation
programmes and systems

Objective 4
Reposition the image and
identity of the organisation
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OBJECTIVE DESCRIPTION AND STRATEGIC INTENT
The following figure outlines the strategic intent of each objective

O7
Development of
graduate tracking
mechanism which will
help with monitoring
and valuation of clients
that are out of the
programme

O6
Be a go to organisation
that is known for being
a source of information
and knowledge and a
hub for research and
development

O2
Improve NCI
operational
efficiencies and
effective programme
delivery

01
Is to achieve an
organisation that has
a diverse group of
funding partners as
well as innovative ways
of facilitating different
income streams

O5
To be an organisation
that is in line with
technological
advancement in
terms of its operations
and solutions to the
market

O3
Improve the quality
and standard of
work within the
organisation and
continuously develop
talent

O4
This objective is aimed
at enhancing the image
of the organisation
and how it is seen and
received by the external
world as well as its
clients
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1.2 STRATEGY PERFORMANCE
The year under review presented a number of challenges for
the business from the challenges posed by the pandemic to
not meeting set targets in terms of NCI revenue generation.
The mentioned challenges impacted the implementation of
the strategy negatively. Overall the organisation performed
at 62% in the delivery of strategic objectives. Following is a
closer look at each objective performance:

Objective 1 –
To be a self-sustainable organisation

Objective 2 –
Improve and develop business systems

Objective 3 –
Be a people centred organisation

NCI achieved 69% of the targeted revenue for
the year 2020/2021 which then put a strain on the
organisation’s financial standing and subsequently
the sustainability of the organisation. This was a
result of a number of stakeholders reviewing MOAs
in place and in some cases redirecting funds as a
result of Covid 19 and due to some of their target
not being met due to a slowdown of work and
deliverables during the lockdown period.
NCI management worked very hard to ensure that
relationships with stakeholder are kept at a healthy
state despite challenges that were facing NCI and
our stakeholders.   Management is confident that
remedial interventions will be put in place to make
up for the lost time and be able to attract more
funders in the next coming financial year.   

Significant performance was achieved in
this objective. The effect of Covid 19 forced
the organisation to give this area priority in
order to be able to operate under the new
requirements forced by Covid 19. A number
of systems were improved especially within
the communication space to allow the business to go on. Even though some of the
improvements required financial resources
it was pleasing to see management team
exploring all avenues to keep the business
running efficiently.  

Delivery in this objective has been very
low. The most contributing factor is a
high turnover of the HR manager position
which creates instability within the division as a result most of the key delivery
areas falling short. Filling of this position
will be given priority in the next coming
year which will contribute towards seeing
traction in implementation of action items
in this objective.
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Objective 4 –
Reposition the image and
identity of the organisation

Objective 5 – Be a
technologically driven
organisation

Objective 6 – Build an
organisation that is a centre of
excellence

Objective 7 – Enhance post
graduate programmes and
systems

During the year 2020/2021 the
organisation was meant to go
full steam on relaunching the
organisation’s new name and
strengthening its brand within
the sector. Majority of these
activities could not be carried
through due to limited financial
resources only a few could be
executed virtually and online.
Other engagement activities i.e.
forums and events were affected
by the restrictions of Covid 19.

NCI continues to explore new
and innovative ways to align its
operations to the technological
advancement.   Significant
ICT improvement have been
achieved some of the pending
activities are due to financial
constraints. New operational
demands caused by Covid 19
forced the business to review
all areas of the business and
make necessary adjustments in
order to continue with business
and new ways of doing business
were introduced and adopted.
Relationships with ICT players
were also strengthened in order
to leverage on their offerings.

This objective was well
executed with a plenary
phase being completed and
ready to move into phase 2
which is planned for the next
financial year. Establishment
of working relationships with
key institutions is a continuous
activity that is progressing.

Delivery in this objective was
partly achieved and the action
items that are still pending
were as a result of priority
areas changing during the
year under review and making
necessary adjustments to the
delivery of NCI programmes.
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2. FUNDING PARTNERS
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SECTION D
HUMAN CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT
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1. HUMAN RESOURES OVERVIEW
The people of NCI have always been the
most important element and the pillar
of the organisation, a lot of effort has
gone through to making NCI a people
centric organisation and this remained
one of the strategic objectives for
the organisation. Significant progress
has been made over the past years
however the year under review has
brought a set of new challenges within
the NCI system that the organisation
has not seen or experience before.
The challenge with Covid 19 did not
only brought a health scare but a huge
strain in business. The decision by
some of our stakeholders to redirect
funds as priorities changed because
of the pandemic put a strain into NCI’s
financial resources and this affected
the entire business.
In an effort to keep the business
running and under control, very difficult
decisions had to be taken and one of
those was to reduce the headcount in
order to stay within the means of the
available resources. NCI for the first
time since its inception in 2006 had to
resort to retrenchment as one of the
measures to keep the organisation
going. The following human resources
statistics will show a significant
reduction in total headcount as well as
payroll of NCI as a result of all negative
effects of the year under review.
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1.1
PERSONNEL
COST BY ORGANISATION DIVISION

The following figure outlines the effect of Covid
19 and financial constraint in the business in
terms of head count comparing the past three
years.

1.2 PERSONNEL COST
BY SALARY BAND

1.3 TRAINING COSTS

1.4 EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES
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2. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY
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SECTION E
GOVERNANCE
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GOVERNANCE
1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate
governance
embodies
processes and systems by which
public entities and government funded
entities are directed, controlled and
held to account. In addition to legislative
requirements based on a government
funded entity’s enabling legislation,
corporate governance with regard to these
entities is applied through the precepts
of the Public Finance Management
Act (PFMA) and run in tandem with the
principles contained in the King Report on
Corporate Governance. NCI has a Board
of Trustees to ensure that these principles
are adhered to. The Board of Trustees
is therefore responsible for setting the
right ethical tone conducive to Corporate
Governance within National Construction
Incubator.
2. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY
The Board of Trustees, through its
Committees provided a continued
oversight role in monitoring the
effectiveness and efficiency of the
organisation’s management system,
in support of the Strategic Plan and the
entire operations of NCI. This oversight
function included the process followed
in the identification, analysis, valuation,
monitoring and reporting of all key areas
within the business, upholding corporate
governance principles in order to, increase
the likelihood of achieving set objectives,
as well as, the minimization of operational
discrepancies through internal audit and
risk management.
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Board members to best provide an
oversight role shall act jointly as a
collective when discharging their duties
and no Board member shall have any
authority to severally perform any act
on behalf of NCI unless specifically
authorised or requested by the Board or
authorised nominees of the Board. Board
members shall be jointly accountable
for the decisions of the Board. Board
members have a fiduciary duty to act in
the best interest of NCI, to act with utmost
care and due diligence in discharging
their duties and avoid conflict of interest
and declare any such conflict when it
arises and to account for any advantages
gained in discharging their duties on
behalf of NCI. Board members shall
act with integrity and not misuse their
positions to derive personal benefits in
the scope of their directorship. The Board
will base its decision on policy, strategy,
facts, analysis and not on prejudice.
OUR APPROACH TO GOVERNANCE
We believe that good corporate
governance, which includes transparency
and accountability, is key to the integrity of
the organization and the ability to manage
risk and perform at optimum levels.
Underpinning the disciplined approach to
governance is the determination to ensure
that a balance is maintained between
good governance and operational
efficiency aimed at executing the strategy.
It is recognised that strategy, performance,
sustainability and risk are inseparable.
The Board also takes into consideration
the concerns and priorities of the wider

stakeholder environment in its strategic
guidance and decision-making process.
To ensure that effective corporate
governance is consistently prioritised
throughout the organization, the Board
applies the principles of The King IV
Report on Corporate Governance for
South Africa 20167 (“King IV”).
GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
SYSTEMS
Good governance are the foundation
of the Board and Committee structure.
The Board recognises its leadership role
and responsibility for the governance
of the organization, always acting in the
best interests of the organization. The
Board sets the organisation’s values
and is responsible for establishing and
maintaining a strong ethical culture
throughout the organization.
The Board performs its governance
responsibilities within a framework
of policies, procedures and controls
which provide effective risk assessment
management
of
the
economic,
environmental and social performance
of the organization. The Boards
responsibilities are outlined in its charter,
which is reviewed annually and is aligned
to the recommendations of King IV.
3. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
2020/2021
The Board is structured to optimize the
professional and management abilities
of individuals towards organisational
excellence. The Board of trustees

presents a diverse provision of skills,
competencies and knowledge that has
been instrumental in the success of NCI
as well as the development of emerging
contractors. NCI has the board of trustees,
which oversees the management of the
programme.
National Construction Incubator is
managed by the Chief Executive Officer
who is accountable to the Board of
Trustees. The Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for driving the organization at
strategic level, assisted by managers of
core business units.
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
The Board of Trustees meet a minimum of
four times a year, additional meetings are
convened as necessary. Board packs are
distributed prior to the meeting.
The Board comprises of five non-executive
members. The Chairman and Human
Resources and Remuneration Committee
ensure the overall effectiveness of the
Board and its Committees, that the Board
provides effective leadership, maintains
ethical standards and is responsible,
accountable, fair and transparent and
that strategies are developed and
implemented with the objective of
achieving sustainable economic, social
and environmental performance.
The Chairman encourages constructive
debate and discussion within the Board
through a culture of openness and
constructive challenge.

3.1 BOARD OF TRUSTEES PROFILES

Lindani Dhlomo

Lindani Dhlomo serves on various Boards, and brings in
a wealth of expertise as founding director of Mind Tunes
(Pty) Ltd whose primary core offering is business training,
manufacturing and corporate gifts. He was the KZN Provincial
Manager for Small Enterprise Development Agency (SEDA)
and during his five-year tenure he established six branches
across the province. Having earned various academic
accolades, he holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree and B Ed
Degree.  With over fifteen years of leadership experience.  Mr
Dhlomo is a passionate public speaker and has a natural flair
in international business relations and corporate governance
with various programmes. He is also a published Author.

Trustee and Chairperson

Paul Heeger is a qualified Civil Engineer with over 25 years,
experience in construction engineering and specialising
in construction project management. Paul holds several
qualifications within the engineering and construction field.  
He is a registered professional in Construction Project
Management (SACPCMP). Architectural Technologist
(SACAP) and in Civil Engineering Technician and Building
Structures (ECSA).

Paul Heeger
Deputy Chairperson

Paul Soutter brings to NCI his knowledge and skill in the
legal fraternity, holding an LLB qualification, Operations
Management and various other trainings. Mr. Soutter is
also a registered member of IoDSA, SACAA, SASSCSA,
Operation Phakisa and various other boards.

Babalwa Mapisa is a qualified Chartered Accountant (CA)
and Certified Internal Auditor. She is currently employed by
the KZN Department of Economic Development, Tourism
and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA) as a General Manager in
the Office of the Head of Department (HOD). Ms Mapisa has
been with the Department since September 2012.

He collectively brings to NCI about fifteen years’ worth of
professional experience.

She was in the employ of the Auditor General South Africa
(AGSA) as an audit manager prior to joining the Department.
She is also the chairperson of the NCI Finance Committee.
Babalwa Mapisa

Paul Soutter

Board Member

Board Member

Mr Mnguni is currently holding a position of a Provincial
Manager for Small Enterprise Development Agency in
KwaZulu Natal. He has completed his Electrical Engineering
Degree at the University of Witwatersrand and was awarded
sponsorship through JICA to study Project Management
in Japan. In addition to this he holds a B-Tech Degree in
Business Management and a Post Graduate Diploma in
Management. Mr Mnguni has a wealth of experience in Fast
Moving Consumer Goods and has held various management
positions. His passion lies in packaging Small Enterprise
Development programmes.
Cedric Mnguni
Board Member

He has worked in multi-disciplines Civil Engineering
Infrastructures within the Municipal, Petrochemical,
Industrial and Harbour Sectors

Patt Chalwa

Chief Executive Officer

Patt Chalwa has obtained a dual post-graduate qualification
of a Master’s Degree in Business Systems Information
Systems through Cape University of Technology &
Wismar Hochschule (Germany) respectively. She also
holds a Baccalaurean Technologies Degree: Engineering
– Construction Management as well as a Diploma in
Building Science. She has further pursued and completed
a Management Advancement Programme (MAP)
through Wits Business School. An additional certificate
was further obtained on Regulations through London
School of Economics and a certificate in Science & Art of
Negotiations through Wits Business School. She is also a
member of (SACPCMP).
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4. REMUNARATION OF THE BOARD

4.1 BOARD MEETING ATTENDANCE
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5. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
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5.1 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE
AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
A
The Audit and Risk Committee will review and comment on the following:
•
The effectiveness of the internal controls;
•
The risk areas of The National Construction Incubator’s operations to be
covered in the scope of internal and external audit;
•
The adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information;
•
Any accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of internal 		
and external audits;
•
The NCI’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;
•
The activities of the internal audit function, including its annual work
programme, coordination with external auditors, the reports of significant
investigations and the responses of management to specific 			
recommendations; and
•
The Annual Financial Statements of the Trust.

B
The Audit and Risk Committee shall:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
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practices and internal audit of The National Construction Incubator;
ensure and satisfy itself on the expertise, resources and experience of
the Finance function within the Trust; and provide oversight on Risk
Management Function of the Trust

•

report and make recommendations to the Board;
report on the effectiveness of internal controls in the annual report to
the Board;
comment on its evaluation of the financial statements, and effectiveness of
controls, in the annual report;
nominate for appointment a registered auditor who is independent of NCI;
determine the fees to be paid to the auditor and the auditor’s terms of 		
reference;
ensure that the appointment of the registered auditor complies with the
Companies Act and any other legislation relating to the appointment of 		
auditors;
determine the nature and extent of non-audit services which the auditor may
provide to The National Construction Incubator;
pre-approve any proposed contract with the auditor for the provision of non
audit services which the auditor may provide to The National Construction
Incubator;
receive and deal appropriately with any complaints relating to the accounting

C
The Audit and Risk Committee will have the authority to investigate matters within
its terms of reference, as identified in this Charter, in order to fulfil its role and
responsibilities

D
Should a report from the internal audit (or any other source) to the Audit and
Risk Committee implicate any member of the Board in fraud, corruption or gross
negligence, the Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee must investigate
the matter and must promptly report the matter to the Chairperson of the Board.

E
Should any matter arise that requires a criminal charge to be laid against a member
of the Board, then the matter should be dealt with in terms of the Fraud Prevention
Policy which takes the Act into account..

F
The Audit and Risk Committee shall communicate any concerns it deems
necessary to the Board.

G
The Committee will ensure that a combined assurance model is applied to
provide a coordinated approach to all assurance activities

H
The Audit and Risk Committee shall all specific duties relating to financial accounts,
internal audit, external audit and risk managementaccounts, internal audit, external
audit and risk management

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE
A
The Committee has an independent role, operating as an overseer and
formulator (as required) of policies and recommendations. The aforementioned
policies and recommendations are thereafter subject to be presented to the
Board for consideration and final approval.

B
The Committee assists the Board in ensuring that:
•
NCI operational objectives and responsibilities are being achieved;
•
Operational records are regularly reviewed and reported on;
•
NCI’s overall operational philosophy and performance is in line with NCI’s
strategic objectives and is adding value;
•
In support of the CEO, the Committee should ensure annual interaction
with senior mentorship and training staff so as to identify and assess 		
possible growth strategies for evaluation and presentation to the Board
for its review and decision;
•
Proper oversight is achieved and maintained in terms of investment(s),
funding and sustainability for identified projects

C
Responsibilities
•
The Committee shall perform all the functions necessary to fulfil its role
as stated above, including but not limited to the following:
•
Committee members will exercise due diligence and will always act in
the best interest of NCI.
•
The Committee is to offer strategic support to the CEO when required on
technical matters.
•
Review NCI’s Training & Mentorship Framework philosophy from time
to time and encourage innovative thinking by supporting the CEO with
change management issues, any new innovations, products, services or
possible strategies, and report back to the Board for further review and
decision.
•
Review NCI’s investment, funding and sustainability policies and
strategies from time to time and report back to the Board for further
review and decision as and when required
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
A
The Committee has an independent role, operating as an overseer and
formulator of recommendations to the Board for its consideration and final
approval.

B
The Committee assists the Board in ensuring that:
NCI remunerates employees and Board Members fairly and responsibly;
The disclosure of Board Members Remuneration is accurate, complete
and transparent;
•
NCI’s overall Remuneration philosophy promotes the achievement of
the NCI’s strategic objectives, encourage individual performance and
reward sustainable value creation;
•
To ensure that there is adequate control over, and mitigation of critical
HR risks;
•
Receive reports relating to NCI’s Corporate Social Responsibility
initiatives;
•
Assist the Board in setting strategy, establishing goals and integrating
social responsibility values into the daily business activities of the Trust;
•
The Board has the appropriate composition for it to execute its duties
effectively;
•
Board Members and management are appointed through a formal
process;
•
Induction and continuous development of Board Members and staff take
place.
•
Formal succession plans for the Members of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer and senior management appointments are in place. Board
members must be actively involved in succession planning for the CEO
and senior management positions; and
•
The committee should ensure that an evaluation of the Board takes
place every two years and that appropriate corrective action is taken.
This should be driven by Chairman of the Board, but the committee 		
should facilitate the evaluation.
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C
Responsibilities
The Committee must perform all the functions necessary to fulfil its role as stated
above, including but not limited to the following:
•
Reviews and recommends to the Board the NCI’s Remuneration 			
philosophy and policies for directors and staff.
•
Ensures that the Remuneration strategy reflects the interests of
stakeholders, is comparable to the general Remuneration environment in
the sector and complies with relevant principles of good corporate
governance.
•
Considers whether the objectives of the Remuneration policy have been
achieved.
•
Ensures that the ratio of fixed and variable pay, in cash and benefits, is
aligned with the NCI’s strategic objectives.
•
Reviews the effectiveness of recorded performance measures that
govern the vesting of incentives.
•
Ensures that all benefits, including retirement benefits and other financial
arrangements, are justified and correctly valued.
•
Considers the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and his or her
executive management when determining their Remuneration and
make the appropriate recommendations to the Board also advises on the
Remuneration of Board.
•
Selects an appropriate peer group when comparing Remuneration
levels and regularly reviews incentive schemes to ensure alignment with
similar organisations.
•
Plays an oversight role in the development and implementation of NCI’s 		
transformation strategy.
•
Monitors NCI’s performance pertaining to HR development against
internal targets, legislative requirements and other applicable standards.
•
Responsible for reviewing and implementing all HR policies, procedures
and strategies.
•
Ensuring issues such as employee retention, organisational culture and 		
employee development are adequately addressed.

6. RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk Management is designed to identify potential events
that may affect the organisation’s ability to achieve its
strategic objectives, manage risks within its risk appetite
of the organisation and ultimately provide assurance
that NCI will achieve its objectives. Risk Management
is applied throughout the organisation and the process
is supported by set of risk related policies. The policy
framework is intended to facilitate the embedding of risk
management techniques in day-to-day operations and
thus better equip NCI to identify events that affect its
objectives and manage risk in a manner consistent with
the Organisational Strategy.
Management of risk is recognised as an integral part of
responsible corporate governance. Effective management
is imperative to NCI to fulfil its mandate and service
delivery expectations of funders and beneficiaries of the
programmes.
The Board of Trustees as the authority accountable for
the affairs of NCI, concerns itself with risk management as
part of corporate governance and as the area that needs
to be managed properly for the organisation to achieve its
set objectives.
In identifying the key strategic objectives for National
Construction Incubator the following external risks that
might affect or have an impact in achieving key strategic
objectives were also identified and these are factors that
affect the construction industry and could potentially affect
the operations and sustainability of NCI.
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EXTERNAL RISK ANALYSIS
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8. AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT
The National Construction Incubator Trust (NCI)
is constituted as a sub-committee of the board
in terms of principle 8 of the King Report on
Governance for South Africa 2016 (King IV). The
committee functions within documented terms of
reference and complies with relevant legislation,
regulation and governance codes. This report of
the audit and risk committee is presented to all
stakeholders in accordance to King IV.
Role of the Committee
The audit and risk committee (the committee)
has an independent role with accountability to
the Board. The committee’s responsibilities
include the statutory duties prescribed by the
Public Finance Management Act (PMFA) and
activities recommended by King lV as well as
additional responsibilities assigned by the board.

•
•

•

identified as a result of internal and external
audits;
The National Construction Incubator’s
compliance with legal and regulatory
provisions;
The activities of the internal audit function,
including its annual work programme,
coordination
with external auditors,
the   reports   of   significant   investigations   
and
the responses of management to
specific recommendations; and
The Annual Financial Statements of the
Trust.

Composition of the Committee
The committee comprised three independent
non-executive directors during the period.
These directors include suitably skilled directors
having recent and relevant financial experience.
The Audit and Risk Committee has adopted The committee is elected by shareholders at the
appropriate formal terms of reference and annual general meeting.
discharged all its responsibilities as contained
therein namely to review and comment on:
The Audit and Risk Committee acknowledges its
responsibility on behalf of the Board of Trustees
• The effectiveness of the internal controls;
to ensure the integrity of the Annual Financial
• The risk areas of The National Construction Statements. The Committee has accordingly
Incubator’s operations to be covered in the applied its mind to the report and believes
scope of internal and external audit;
that it appropriately and sufficiently addresses
• The adequacy, reliability and accuracy of all material issues, and fairly presents the
financial information;
performance of the National Construction
• Any accounting and auditing concerns Incubator (NCI) for the financial year

48

under review.
Internal Audit
The internal audit function provides information
to assist in the establishment and maintenance
of an effective system of internal control to
manage the risks associated with the Trust. The
role of internal audit is contained in the internal
audit charter. The charter is reviewed annually
and is aligned with the recommendations of
King lV.
Internal audit facilitates the combined assurance
process and is responsible for the following:
•
•
•

evaluating governance processes, including
ethics;
assessing the effectiveness of the risk
methodology and internal financial controls;
and
evaluating
business
processes
and
associated controls in accordance with the
annual audit plan and combined assurance
model.

Internal Control
Systems of internal control are designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
misstatement or loss.

executive management. The systems of internal
control are based on established organizational
structures, together with written policies and
procedures, and provide for suitably qualified
employees, segregation of duties, clearly
defined lines of authority and accountability.
They also include cost and budgeting controls,
and comprehensive management reporting.
External Audit
The committee appraised the independence,
expertise and objectivity of Mazars as the
external auditor, as well as approving the terms
of engagement and the fees paid to Mazars.
The external auditor has unrestricted access to
the Trust’s records and management. The auditor
furnishes a written report to the committee on
significant findings arising from the annual audit
and is able to raise matters of concern directly
with the chairman of the committee.
The Trust has received confirmation from the
external auditor that the partners and staff
responsible for the audit comply with all legal
and professional requirements

Activities of the Committee
The committee met four times during the financial
year. Members of the committee and the external
auditor may request a non-scheduled meeting if
they consider this necessary. The chairman of
While the board is responsible for the internal the committee will determine if such a meeting
control systems and for reviewing their should be convened.
effectiveness, responsibility for their actual
implementation and maintenance rests with Minutes of the meetings of the
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committee, except those recording private meetings with the external and internal auditors, are
circulated to all directors and supplemented by an update from the committee chairman at each board
meeting. Matters requiring action or improvement are identified and appropriate recommendations
made to the board.
Evaluation of Executive Manager Finance and Finance Function
The committee is satisfied that the expertise and experience of the Executive Manager Finance is
appropriate to meet the responsibilities of the position. This is based on the qualifications, levels of
experience, continuing professional education and the board’s assessment of the financial knowledge
of the Executive Manager Finance.
The committee is also satisfied as to the appropriateness, expertise and adequacy of resources of
the finance function and the experience of all personnel responsible for the finance function.
Approval of the Audit and Risk Committee Report
The committee confirms that it has functioned in accordance with its terms of reference for the 2021
financial year and that its reports to the stakeholders have been approved by the board.
_________________________________
Mr B Shangase
Chairperson: Audit and Risk Committee
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SUCCESS STORIES

51
35

Contractor Details
Province		 :
District/Branch name
:
Business Name		
:
Director Name		
:
Business type		
:

Feedback from Contractor
Gauteng
National Construction Incubator
Gontsefela Construction and Realty
Ms Rose Keletso Letlape
Construction

Background
•
•
•
•

Gontsefela Construction and Realty was established in
September 2006 and is a 100% Black Woman-owned enterprise
The Company is situated in Kempton Park and is affiliated to
CIDB, SAFCEC, SAWIC and the NHBRC.
To date the business boasts a successful track record and has
proven to be feasible and viable.
Gontsefela Construction and Realty was in the Vuk’uphile
Learnership Programme in Ekurhuleni and has since upgraded
from CIDB 1CE and 1GB to 3CE and 4GB.

•

Challenges and Contractor Needs
•

Accessing construction projects outside the Vuk’uphile
Programme.

Intervention and or Solution
•

•

52

The contractor was offered comprehensive business
support from NCI Business and Technical mentors, the
support included but not limited to:
- Business Mentoring
- Technical Mentoring
- Financial Management Mentoring
- BOQ assistance
The contractor was also offered technical training, coaching and support by the Technical Mentor, which included
but not limited to the following:
- Training on programming of works
- Training on Health and Safety
- Training on Project Management

•
•
•
•
•
•

The Vuk’uphile Learnership Programme
has created opportunities for Gontsefela
Construction and Realty to get exposure
to clients and projects which has assisted
the company to alleviate poverty through
creating employment, skills development
and transfer in the communities at large. It
allows us to give back to the communities.
In the process, the Company has also been
able to upgrade to higher CIDB grading.
The Learnership has impacted positively
on us as an entity and as individuals as it
has changed lives.
Through mentorship and coaching support
from SEDA, Vuk’uphile has equipped us
with various training.
The Learnership has assisted us in creating,
developing and managing systems.
It has provided a platform to raise working
capital for future projects.
The mentorship helps maintain good
relations between the Client and the
Contractor.

Contractor Details
Province		
Branch			
Business Name		
Director Name		
Business type		
			

Feedback from Contractor
:
:
:
:
:

KwaZulu Natal
Empangeni, Transnet Mega Hub
Helinex Construction & Projects
Mr Hlanganani Buthelezi
Civil and General Building 		
Construction

Background
•

•

Helinex Construction and Projects is a 100% black owned and
managed by Mr. Hlanganani Buthelezi established in 2009
with the purpose of representing a true affirmative business
enterprise. Mr.Buthelezi’s excellent business acumen with his
long business background and Construction knowledge.
Currently Helinex Construction and projects has been appointed
by Izinga Holdings to maintain and repair water meters and
valves around the Cetshwayo District.

Challenges and Contractor Needs
•

The major challenge that the business was facing was access
to funding.

Intervention and or Solution
NCI together with the contractor have manged to identify gaps and
engage in trainings and workshops
To date the client has attended all of the trainings that were offered
by the incubator and still looking forward to attending more workshops/trainings.
The contractor has been offered business training, coaching and
business support from both the Business and the Technical Mentor; support include but not limited to:
• Business Compliance Training and Administration
• Training on project and site management
• Credit applications
• Mentoring on Business Management
• The client is receiving site and office support from NCI on the
current project and is following the mine’s health and safety
rules.
Helinex Training and Projects has moved 1grade up since joining
NCI from 3CEPE, 3GBPE to 4CE, 4GB.

We believe that we have an important role to
play in the future of South Africa. There are
vast number of areas still under – developed
with even the most basic of needs not being
catered for. With our approach of dealing with
the actual person on the ground experiencing
the need, we can deliver the right support and
assistance at the right time in the right manner.
We are well situated to work at grassroots
levels, and we have a good understanding of
the needs of the people.
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Contractor Details

Feedback from Contractor

Province		
:
Limpopo
Branch			
:
NCI Limpopo
Business Name		
:
Mmagongwana General 		
				Construction CC
Director Name		
:
Ms Magdeline Paledi
Business type		
:
Civil and General Building 		
				Construction

Background
Mmagongwana General Construction CC is a 100% black female
owned company registered under the Close Corporations Act and was
founded in 2002 by Ms. Magdeline Paledi who have high technical
skills and knowledge of the construction industry. Mmagongwana has
provided employment opportunities throughout its operation and has
managed to transfer & offer technical skills to unskilled and semiskilled
individuals

Challenges and Contractor Needs
The business was facing the following challenges:
• Limited skills in Marketing & Financial Management
• Lack of proper understanding of updated Contracts Law
• Project Management

In order to achieve what we have envisioned,
our company is aiming to prevent and minimise
Intervention and or Solution
workplace injuries while giving first class
• The client is currently having H & S representative on all service and all of this can be achieved through
continuous support from NCI Mentorship &
construction sites and all records are kept in the site office.
• To date the client has attended all of the trainings that were offered Training.
•
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by the incubator and there is a lot of improvement on the site
administration.
The NCI mentors every now and then are holding one on one
session with the client in order to prevent any challenges that may
arise.

The contractor has si8nce displayed levels of experience and capability
of looking after its employees and had successfully applied for UIF
relief fund and was able to return to site. MGC have been partaking
and contributing to jobs creation within the Fetakgomo Tubatse
Municipality and are employing skilled and unskilled labourers.
MGC was shortlisted for the ERWIC (Empowerment & Recognition
of Women in Construction) Awards during quarter two of the current
financial year.

WHERE TO FIND US
Head Office
199 Anton Lembede Street
Embassy Building, 23rd Floor
Suite, 2305
Tel: 031 368 1207
Fax: 031 368 1205

Kwa-Zulu Natal
Durban Branch
127 Johannes Nkosi Street
Durban, 4000
Tel: 031 309 4942/40
Fax: 031 309 4946

Kwa-Zulu Natal
Dundee Branch
39 Victoria Street
Princess Magogo Blvd
Dundee, 3000
Tel: 034 212 2074
Fax: 034 212 2359

Kwa-Zulu Natal
Kwamashu Branch
M76 Bhungezi Road
KwaMashu, 4360
Tel: 031 503 5224/5
Fax: 031 503 5234

Kwa-Zulu Natal
Transnet Mega Hub
Empangeni
Branch
20 Brandon Road
Empangeni, 3880
Tel: 074 1488 152/146

Kwa-Zulu Natal
uMhlathuze Branch
Richards Bay,
3900
Tel:

Eastern Cape
Mthatha Branch
10 Timber Street
Vulindlela Heights, Mthatha,
5099
Tel: 087 945 3249

Eastern Cape
East London - IDZ
First Floor, CE1 Building,
Mbudu St, ELIDZ
Lower Chester Road,
Sunnyridge
Tel: 087 373 0801

Eastern Cape
Nelson Mandela Bay Branch
85 Burman Road, Deal Party
Port Elizabeth, 6013
Tel: 041 486 2542/2547
Fax: 041 486 2580

Gauteng
Ekurhuleni Branch
68 Rigger Road, MSI Office
Park, Block C Sparton
Kempton Park, 1620
Tel: 011 394 0015

Gauteng
Atteridgeville Branch
351 Cnr. Kalafong Hospital
Road & Church Street
Atteridgeville,
Pretoria West, 0008
Tel: 012 373 8870/5890
Fax: 012 373 8061

www.natci.org.za
@NationalConsInc - twitter
National Construction
Incubator - Linkedin
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Trustees’ Report
National Construction Incubator Trust
(Registration number IT 183/2008)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
The trustees have pleasure in presenting their report on the Annual Financial Statements of National Construction Incubator Trust for the year
ended 31 March 2021.
1. Nature of business
Established in 2006, National Construction Incubator Trust (NCI) is a public benefit organisation mandated to develop and mentor emerging
construction companies in South Africa. The core business of NCI is to develop emerging contractors through the infusion of both technical and
business administration skills that are aligned with the introduction of technology in order to enhance the effective and efficient management of
their businesses.
The NCI is aimed at providing support to selected participants for a period of three years by which time each emerging contractor should have
advanced by at least one financial level above their entry point on the Construction Industry Development Board (CIDB) register and be capable of
operating unassisted in the open market. Should a particular contractor not wish to advance more than one CIDB financial grading, an alternative
primary indicator will be agreed-upon, possibly “gross income/turnover” if multiple smaller projects are deemed to be the niche market of the
particular contractor.
The construction incubation model is one of the interventions that can make a significant impact in addressing the challenges faced by emerging
contractors in South Africa. Most construction businesses (SMME) acknowledge the services offered by the NCI as one of the solutions with
regard to skills shortage. There is consensus amongst the majority of client stakeholders that the model offers a good strategy to assist emerging
contractors. The level of formality the model brings to the industry is also widely acknowledged and appreciated.
NCI provides support in three phases of development of emerging contractors: tender phase support, construction phase support and general
administration support. We have identified these areas as being the most critical in terms of need for development and mentorship interventions.
As at the end of financial year 2020/21 National Construction Incubator Trust supported 309 construction businesses in South Africa.
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NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION INCUBATOR TRUST
Our Mandate

The core business of NCI is to develop emerging contractors through the infusion of both technical and business administration skills
that are aligned with the introduction of technology in order to enhance the efficiency and efficient management of their businesses.

Our Overall Objective

The incubator is aimed at providing support to selected participants for a period of three years by which time each emerging contractor
should have advanced by at least one financial level above their entry point on the CIDB register, and be capable of operating
independently in the open market.

Organisational Units

- Contractor Development & Training
- Finance & Administration
- Human Resources
- Facilities
- Marketing & Stakeholder Relations

Branch Network

KwaZulu Natal

Eastern Cape

Gauteng

Limpopo
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- Durban
- KwaMashu
- Dundee
- Empangeni (Transnet)
- uMhlathuze
- Mthatha
- Port Elizabeth
- East London
- Krugersdorp
- Spartan
- Atteridgeville
- Steelpoort

Source of Funding

Source of Funding

Performance
Highlights

Employee Profile

Branch

Funding Source

- Durban
- KwaMashu
- Dundee
- Port Elizabeth
- Mthatha
- East London
- Krugersdorp

- Seda
- eThekwini Municipality
- Seda
- Seda and Nelson Mandela Bay Municipality
- Seda
- East London IDZ and Seda
- Seda & Gauteng Department of Human Settlement

Branch

Funding Source

- Spartan
- Atteridgeville
- Steelpoort
- Empangeni
- uMhlathuze

- Ekurhuleni Metropolitan Municipality & Gauteng Department of Human Settlement
- City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality & Gauteng Department of Human Settlement
- Limpopo Economic Development, Environment & Tourism
- Transnet
- UMhlathuze Municipality Economic Development

- 531 companies supported
- 352 job opportunities created
- R75.8 million turnover generated by NCI clients
- 41% of companies are women owned
- 32% of companies are youth owned
31 Employees

96.77% Black

67.74% Female
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2. Trustees
Dr J Ndlovu (Chairperson) (Resigned: 01 December 2020)
Mr L Dhlomo (Chairperson) (Appointed: 01 December 2020)
Mr P F P Heeger (Deputy Chairperson) (Appointed: 01 December 2020)
Ms P N Chalwa (Appointed: 01 October 2020)
Mr W S Souter
3. Review of financial results and activities
The financial performance for the year is reflected in the statement of surplus or deficit set out on page 13 thereof. These results are summarised
as follows:
Description 										
Operating income (Revenue & other Income)
Operating expenses
Interest income
Finance cost
(Deficit) surplus for the year

2021 				
		
		

R27 173 389 4			
(32 962 454)		
49 172
(384)				
(5 740 277)			

2020
R5 613 087
(41 223 024)
187 841
(18)
4 577 886

4. Events after the reporting period
The trustees are not aware of any other material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.
5. Going concern
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes
that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and
commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
The Trustees has given due consideration to the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Trustees’ ability to continue as a going concern.
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The Trustees believes that the pandemic will have a temporary impact on the business activities. Notwithstanding these short-term challenges the
Trustees is of the view that the Trust has sufficient resources to continue as a going concern.
The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve at the date of this report. The Trust is therefore uncertain as to the full impact that the
pandemic will have on its financial condition, liquidity, and future results of operations during the next 12 months.
The Board of Trustees is focused and committed to the restructuring initiatives and debt reduction of Trust such as going virtually on some of the
branches. The Trustees are also of the view that there are no material uncertainties that cast doubt on the Trustees’ ability to operate. The Trustees
is also satisfied that the Trust has
sufficient resources, or access to resources, to continue with all operating activities for the foreseeable future. Based on this assessment, the
Trustees has no reason to believe that the Trust will not be a going concern for the foreseeable future.
Management is also committed in revenue generation through the appointment of four (4) fund raising panel to assist the Trust.
6. Auditors
SAB&T DURBAN has been appointed as auditors of the trust for 2021 financial year.
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National Construction Incubator Trust
(Registration number IT 183/2008)
Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021
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General Information
National Construction Incubator Trust
(Registration number IT 183/2008)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
Country of incorporation and domicile 								South Africa
Activities of the trust

To promote and assist small businesses in the field of construction

Board Members 										
Dr J Ndlovu (Chairperson) (Resigned: 01 December 2020)
												Mr L P Dhlomo (Chairperson) (Appointed: 01 December 2020)
												Mr P Heeger (Deputy Chairperson) (Appointed: 01 December 2020)
												Mr C S Mnguni (Board Member)
												Mr W Soutter (Board Member)
												Ms B Mapisa (Board Member)
Ms P Chalwa (Chief Executive Officer) (Appointed: 01 October 2020)
												Mr F Docrat (Appointed: 02 September 2021)
												Mr W Makwabe (Appointed: 1 November 2021)
Registered office

23rd Floor Embassy Building 199 Anton Lembede Street Durban 4001

Postal address 											Postnet Suite 02 Private Bag X504 Northway 4065
Bankers 											ABSA Bank
Auditors 											SAB&T DURBAN
												Chartered Accountants (SA)
												Registered Auditors
Trust registration number 									IT 183/2008
Level of assurance
These annual financial statements have been audited in
												compliance with the applicable requirements of the Trust Deed.
Trust Secretary 											Statucor (Pty) Ltd (Resigned: 15 February 2021)
												Siyaloba Consulting (Pty) Ltd (Appointed: 15 February 2021)
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Trustees’ Responsibilities and Approval
National Construction Incubator Trust
(Registration number IT 183/2008)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
The trustees are required to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial
information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the trust as at the end of the financial
year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized
Entities and the requirements of the Trust Deed. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of
the Trust Deed and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.
The trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the trust and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the trustees to meet these responsibilities, the board of trustees sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of
error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and
adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the trust and all employees are required to maintain the highest
ethical standards in ensuring the trust’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the trust is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the trust. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the trust endeavours to minimise it
by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The trustees are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the
financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The trustees have reviewed the trust’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2022 and, in the light of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that
the trust has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the trust’s annual financial statements. The annual financial statements have been examined
by the trust’s external auditors and their report is presented on page 4.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 6 to 23, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the board of trustees on 29 October 2021
and were signed on its behalf by:

Mr L P Dhlomo (Chairperson)
Durban
Friday, 29 October 2021

Ms P N Chalwa (Chief Executive Officer)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Trustee of National Construction Incubator Trust
Opinion
We have audited the annual financial statements of National Construction Incubator Trust (the trust) set out on pages 10 to 23, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2021, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and the notes to the annual financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the annual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of National Construction Incubator Trust as at 31 March 2021, and
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and
the requirements of the Trust Deed.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the trust in accordance with the sections 290 and 291 of the Independent Regulatory
Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised January 2018), parts 1 and 3 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’
Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised November 2018) (together the IRBA Codes) and other independence requirements applicable to performing
audits of annual financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities, as applicable, in accordance with the IRBA Codes and in accordance with
other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Codes are consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) respectively. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Other Information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the document titled “National Construction Incubator Trust
annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021”, which includes the Trustees’ Report as required by the Trust Deed and the supplementary information as set
out on pages 24 to 25. The other information does not include the annual financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the annual financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the annual financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the annual financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Trustees for the Annual Financial Statements
The trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for
Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Trust Deed, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
annual financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the annual financial statements, the trustees are responsible for
assessing the trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the trustees either intend to liquidate the trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the trust’s internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the trustees.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the annual financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the trust to cease
to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the annual financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with the trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
________________________________
SAB&T DURBAN
Partner
Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registered Auditors
13 December 2021
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT
National Construction Incubator Trust
(Registration number IT 183/2008)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
The trustees have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of National Construction Incubator Trust and its associates for the year ended 31 March
2021.
1. The trust
The trust was formed in terms of a trust settlement by Mrs X dated 01 March 1900 as amended by a supplementary notarial deed dated .
2. Review of financial results and activities
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities. The accounting policies
have been applied consistently compared to the prior year.
Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the trust are set out in these annual financial statements.
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3. Beneficiaries
The beneficiary of the trust during the accounting year and up to the date of this report is as follows:
Name
4. Distributions to beneficiaries
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5. Trustees’ benefits
6. Trust liabilities
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7. Right of indemnity
8. Auditors
SAB&T DURBAN continued in office as auditors for the trust for 2021.
They will continue in office for the 2022 financial year.
The annual financial statements set out on page 10, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the board of trustees on 29 October 2021, and
were signed on its behalf by:
Approval of annual financial statements

Trustee
Executive
Friday, 29 October 2021
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
National Construction Incubator Trust
(Registration number IT 183/2008)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
		
Note(s)

2021 			
R 			

2020
R

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 										

2 		

500 963 		

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 										
4 		
9 725 775 		
Cash and cash equivalents 										
5 		
5 541 267 		
															15 267 042 		
Total Assets 														15 768 005 		

1 063 228
12 592 915
5 227 262
17 820 177
18 883 405

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Trust capital 												
6 		
100 			
Accumulated surplus 													10 399 291 		
															10 399 391 		

100
16 139 568
16 139 668

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 										
7 		
5 240 947 		
Provisions 												8 		 127 667 		
															 5 368 614 		
Total Equity and Liabilities 										
15 		
768 005 		
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2 369 564
374 173
2 743 737
18 883 405

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
National Construction Incubator Trust
(Registration number IT 183/2008)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
Note(s)

2021
R 			

2020
R

Revenue 												9 		 19 377 600 		 44 276 196
Other income 												
10 		
7l 795 789 		
1 336 891
Operating expenses 													 (32 962 454) 		(41 223 024)
Operating (deficit) surplus before interest 								
11		
(5 789 065) 		
4 390 063
Interest income 												
13 		
49 172 		
187 841
Finance costs 												
14 		
(384) 			
(18)
(Deficit) surplus for the year 												
(5 740 277) 		
4 577 886
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
National Construction Incubator Trust
(Registration number IT 183/2008)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
											Trust capital 		Accumulated surplus 		Total funds
											
R 			
R 			
R
Balance at 01 April 2019 								
Surplus for the year 									
Balance at 01 April 2020 								
Deficit for the year 									
Balance at 31 March 2021 								
Note(s) 										
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100 		
- 		
100 		
- 		
100
6

11 561 682 		
4 577 886 			
16 139 568 			
(5 740 277) 			
10 399 291 			

11 561 782
4 577 886
16 139 668
(5 740 277)
10 399 391

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
National Construction Incubator Trust
(Registration number IT 183/2008)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
Note(s)

2021
R 			

2020
R

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from funders 												
Cash paid to suppliers and employees 											
Cash generated from operations 									
16 		
Interest income 														
Finance costs 														
Net cash from operating activities 											

22 142 258 		
42 643 211
(21 932 385) 		
(39 211 366)
209 873 		
3 431 845
49 172 		
187 841
(384) 			
(18)
258 661 		
3 619 668

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 								
2 		
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 							
2 		
Loan advanced to trustee
Net cash from investing activities 											

(19 964) 		
75 308 		
                   55 344 		

(85 682)
98 451
        357 465
370 234

Total cash movement for the year 											
Cash at the beginning of the year 											
Total cash at end of the year 										
5 		

314 005 		
5 227 262 		
5 541 267 		

3 989 902
1 237 360
5 227 262
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
National Construction Incubator Trust
(Registration number IT 183/2008)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
1. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Trust Deed.
Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using the historical cost concept.
Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of asset, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future period.
Significant accounting policies
The following significant accounting policies, which are consistent with those of the previous year, were applied by the trust during the period:
1.1 Revenue
Grant income
The trust shall recognise grants as follows:
• a grant that does not impose specified future perfomance conditions on the recipient is recognised in income when the grant proceeds are receivable;
• a grant that imposes specified future performance conditions on the recipient is recognised in incomeonly when the perfomance conditions are met; and
• grants received before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied are recognised as a liability.
The trust shall measure grants at fair value of the asset received or receivable.
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Rental income
Revenue from the rental of property and office space is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied;
•
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
•
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the trust;
• the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably;
and
• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
Interest income
Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
1.2 Property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the trust; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
Cost includes costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If
a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing an asset and restoring the site on which it is located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment,
when such dismantling, removal and restoration is obligatory.
Property, plant and equipment is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The residual value and the useful life of
each asset are reviewed at each financial period-end.
Leasehold improvements are capitalised at cost and written off over the period of the lease.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is to be depreciated separately. The depreciation
charge fo reach period is recognised in surplus / deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
term of an asset’s useful life.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item 								Depreciation method 				Average useful life
Office equipment
Straight line
6 years
Computer equipment 						Straight line 					3 years
Furniture and fittings
Straight line
6 years
Motor vehicles 							Straight line 					5 years
Leasehold improvements 					Straight line 					3 years
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The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
When indicators are present that the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment have changed since the most recent annual reporting date,
they are reassessed. Any changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.
Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of property,
plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit to bring the carrying
amount in line with the recoverable amount.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of
the item, is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised.
1.3 Financial instruments
Initial measurement
Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including transaction costs except in the initial measurement of financial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value through surplus or deficit) unless the arrangement constitutes, in effect, a financing transaction in which case it is measured at the present value of
the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.
Financial instruments at amortised cost
These include loans, trade receivables and trade payables. Those debt instruments which meet the criteria in section 11.8(b) of the standard, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which are classified as current assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the cash expected to be received or paid, unless the arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction.
At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If there is
objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is
reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Classification
Financial instruments recognised on the statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments, leases and trade and other
payables. Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value and any subsequent measurement is measured in accordance with section 22 of IFRS for SMEs.
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Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables generally have 30 days term and are recognised and carried at the invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectable amounts.Provision is made
when there is objective evidence that the trust will not be able to collect the debts. Bad debts are written off when identified.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.
Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are classified as financial liabilities originated by the trust. These short term amounts are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in the future for the goods supplied and services rendered.
Derecognition
Financial assets
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or settled as per IFRS for SMEs section 11.36.
Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially difference terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date the trust assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, to determine whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset has been impaired.
If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.the effective interest rate compounded at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the assets shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account.
The amount of the loss shall be recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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The trust first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant.
If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial assets, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, to the extent that the
carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
1.4 Impairment of assets
The trust assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment may be impaired.
If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated
recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in
excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of
impairment is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
1.5 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when the trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event; it is probable that the trust will be required to transfer economic benefits
in settlement; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
1.6 Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that the trust has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods to the buyer, or has rendered services under an
agreement provided the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the trust. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding sales taxes and discounts. Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest
rate method.
1.7 Taxation
No provision has been made for taxation on any operating surplus as the trust is a Public Benefit Organisation and is therefore exempt from taxation in acordance with the Income
Tax Act No.58 of 1982, Section 10(1) (Cn).
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
National Construction Incubator Trust
(Registration number IT 183/2008)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
2021
R

2020
R

2. Property, plant and equipment
2021 					

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles 						
Office equipment
IT equipment 						
Leasehold improvements
TOTAL

Cost or
revaluation

Accumulated
depreciation

   2 490 850
1 417 625
   1 289 526
1 470 283
      942 882

   (2 263 003)
(1 318 733) 		
   (1 191 782)
(1 393 803) 		
      (942 882)

7 611 166

Carrying
value

2020

Cost or
revaluation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

227 847
    2 746 470
    (2 293 793)
98 892
1 417 625
(1 235 973) 		
  97 744
    1 350 045         (1 093 265)
76 480
1 527 470
(1 355 351) 		
           -                     942 882
       (942 882)

   452 677
181 652
   256 780
172 119
              -

(7 110 203) 		

500 963

1 063 228

Opening
balance

Additions

7 984 492

(6 921 264) 		

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2021

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Computer equipment
TOTAL

        452 677
        181 652
        256 780
        172 119
1 063 228

                                                19 964
19 964 		

Disposals

Depreciation

Closing Balance

           (194)
     (81)
     -

       (224 636)
         (82 760)
       (158 955)
       (115 603)

   227 847
     98 892
     97 744
     76 480

(275)

(581 954)

500 963
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2021
R

2020
R

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2020
Opening
balance

Additions

Disposals

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Computer equipment

767 876
396 560
394 852
269 376

            43 866
      41 816

   (9 436)
-

TOTAL

1 828 664

85 682 		

(9 436)

Depreciation
(315 199)
(214 908)
(172 502)
(139 073)
(841 682) 		

Closing Balance
            452 677
            181 652
            256 780
            172 119
1 063 228

3. Loan to former Trustee
At cost
Loan balance
The loan balance of R243 236 is in respect of the credit card expenses and cash send
transactions incurred by Mr Nyandeni (Former Trustee) in the 2018/19 financial year
without supporting documents which are treated as loan receivable. The loan was
initially receivable at once-off R114 230 by by 31 December 2019, plus equal monthly
instalment of R6 757 receivable effective 01 February 2020, however that payment plan
did not materialise and therefore the loan was written-off during the year.
Less: Provision for bad debts
Due to non-repayments from the former Trustee in respect of the amount due to the
Trust, the loan was written-off during the year.
4. Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables 											
Rental debtors 													
Prepayments
Deposits 													
Less: Provision for bad debts 											
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    -

243 236

    -

            (243 236)

    -

-

9 403 844 		
1 603 947 		
                 321 928 		
(1 603 944) 		
9 725 775 		

18 670 299
1 278 552
100 688
321 928
(7 778 552)
12 592 915

2021
R

2020
R

Provision for bad debts consist of the following;
Opening balance 														
(7 778 552) 		
Rental debtors													
		
(325 392) 		
Adjustments
                              6 500 000
Total 														
(1 603 944) 		

(7 512 716)
(265 836)
                         (7 778 552)

5. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand 													
Bank balances 													
														

5 724 			
5 535 543 		
5 541 267 		

52 981
5 174 281
5 227 262

100 			

100

6. Trust capital
Trust capital
Balance 													
7. Trade and other payables
Trade payables 															
Sundry suppliers 														
Credit card
Rent received in advance
																

3 926 257
1 314 690
            5 240 947

2 061 680
305 021
                 1 363
                 1 500
2 369 564

8. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2021
											Opening
											balance
Provisions for leave pay 								
374 173

Additions Amount
795 485

charged
(1 029 967)

Reversed
(12 024)

Total
127 667

Reconciliation of provisions - 2020
											Opening
											balance
Additions Amount
charged
Reversed
Closing
																				balance
Provisions for leave pay 								
761 471
1 157 132
(1 610 706)
66 276
374 173
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2021
R

2020
R

9. Revenue
Seda Technology Programme - Mogale City
   1 281 825
Seda Technology Programme - Durban
   5 296 187
Seda Technology Programme - Mthatha
   1 602 584
Seda Technology Programme - uMzinyathi
   1 603 800
Seda Technology Programme - East London
   1 129 948
Seda Technology Programme - Port Elizabeth
     Ethekwini Municipality - Vukuphile
                  Ethekwini Metropolitation Municipality - KwaMashu
                  Ekurhuleni Metropolitan Municipality - Vukuphile Project
     City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality - Atteridgeville
                               Limpopo Economic Development, Environment and Tourism
                                            Nelson Mandela Bay Metropolitan Municipality - Port Elizabeth
   2 735 656
Construction Education and Training Authority - Durban
                  Transnet - Empangeni Branch
     Gauteng Department of Human Settlement
     Umhlathuze Municipality - Esikhaleni Branch
   5 727 600
														
19 377 600

                          1 310 121
                          4 694 484
                          1 500 836
                          1 501 772
                          2 001 115
             1 624 973
             3 626 656
             3 196 703
             5 126 130
             3 016 703
             1 800 000
                          1 500 000
                818 298
             3 739 543
             3 085 862
                          5 733 000
44 276 196

10. Other income
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Rental income 													
Sundry income 													
Mentorship income
Provision for bad debts adjustment
														
11. Operating (deficit) surplus before interest

        75 033
362 665
614 855
        6 743 236
7 795 789

                  89 015
378 816
556 263
                312 797
                                        1 336 891

Premises
• Contractual amounts 											

2 944 085

3 295 552

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 									
Employee costs 												

        75 033
581 954
16 397 618

                  89 015
841 682
22 327 262

Operating (deficit) surplus before interest for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
Operating lease charges
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2021
R

2020
R

12. Depreciation
The following items are included within depreciation:
Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment 													

581 954

841 682

13. Interest income
Interest income
Bank 																

49 172 		

187 841

384 		

18

14. Finance costs
Bank 																	
15. Auditor’s remuneration
External audit 												
Internal audit 												
													

118 169 		
77 954 			
196 123 		

111 010
79 672
190 682

16. Cash generated from operations
(Deficit) surplus before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 										
Surplus on sale of assets 										
Interest received 											
Finance costs 												
Movements in provisions 										
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables 										
Trade and other payables 										
													

                                          (5 740 277)

         4 577 886

581 954 		
(75 033) 		
(49 172) 		
384 		
(246 506) 		

841 682
(89 015)
(187 841)
18
(387 298)

2 867 140 		
2 871 383 		
209 873 		

(2 736 751)
1 413 164
3 431 845
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2021
R

2020
R

17. Commitments
Operating leases – as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive
- later than five years
													
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the trust for certain of its office properties.

                 2 823 175
               13 079 182
                 3 980 424
19 882 781 		

            2 817 905
          12 230 639
            7 652 142
22 700 686

18. Related parties
Relationships
Member of key management

Ms P N Chalwa - Chief Executive Officer
Mr M W Nyandeni - Former Chief Executive Officer

Related party transactions
Compensation paid to key management
Ms P N Chalwa
Basic salary 												
Allowance (travel and telephone) 										
Other benefits
														

1 308 967 		
36 000 			
         49 317
1 394 284 		

Mr M W Nyandeni
Basic salary
Allowance (travel and telephone)
Other benefits
															

                  - 		

119 601
3 000
      2 250
124 851

  698 255
    72 894
                 81 300
852 449

Total compensation paid to key management
Basic salary 												
1 308 967 		
Allowance (travel and telephone) 										
36 000 			
Other short term benefits
                                   49 317
													
1 394 284 		
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817 826
75 894
    83 550
977 270

19. Irregular expenditure

2021
R

2020
R

The Trust has identified irregular expenditure to the value of R4 626 wherein Limpopo Pick ‘n Pay card funds and petty cash was stolen without trace. The NCI personnel
linked to the incidents left the organisation, consequently funds could not be recovered.
20. Board Members’ Emoluments
Board Members
Dr J Ndlovu 														
Mr L P Dhlomo 														
Mr S E G Bophela
Ms Y Jiya
Mr P Heeger 														
Mr W Soutter 														
Ms Babalwa Mapisa
Audit Committe Member												
Mr B M Shangase 													
															

174 513 		
289 920
199 382
215 200
                                             115 200
                                 254 400
151 920 		
153 600
95 520 			
41 600
                     117 120
                        738 455 		
1 069 920
77 520 			
815 975 		

70 200
1 140 120
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
National Construction Incubator Trust
(Registration number IT 183/2008)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
Note(s) 		

2021
R 			

2020
R

Revenue
Grant income 													

19 377 600 		

44 276 196

Other income
Rental income 													
Sundry income 													
Mentorship income
Provision for bad debts adjustment
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
														

362 665 		
614 855 		
                      6 743 236
         75 033
7 795 789 		

378 816
556 263
   312 797
                               89 015
1 336 891

Expenses (Refer to page 25) 											
(32 962 454) 		
Operating (deficit) surplus
     11                (5 789 065)

(41 223 024)
            4 390 063

Investment income 										
13
Finance costs 											
14
														
(Deficit) surplus for the year 											

88

49 172 			
(384)
48 788
(5 740 277) 		

187 841
(18)
187 823
4 577 886

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
National Construction Incubator Trust
(Registration number IT 183/2008)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
Note(s)

2021
R 		

2020
R

Operating expenses
Advertising 														
80 857 		
133 681
Auditors remuneration 											
15 		
196 123 		
190 682
Bad debts
  6 745 030
                 Bank charges 														
40 368 		
55 650
Board members’ emoluments 										
20 		
815 975 		
1 140 120
Board members’ expenses 												
8 206 		
238 682
Computer software and licencing 											
55 237 		
81 311
Conference 														
54 731 		
88 890
Consulting fees 														
431 182 		
358 400
Consumables
                           4 751
Depreciation 														
581 954 		
841 682
Employee costs 													16 397 618 		 22 327 262
Fines and penalties 													
107 411 		
92 986
Flowers
                         41 581
IT expenses 														
534 071 		
587 362
Insurance 														
327 352 		
321 316
Irregular expenditure 											
19 		
4 626 		
114 971
Lease rentals on operating lease 											
2 944 085 		
3 295 552
Legal expenses
         1 380
    Motor vehicle expenses 													
47 680 		
78 186
Municipal expenses 													
919 145 		
1 010 025
Non-capital expenses
                         16 513
Occupational injuries and diseases 											
31 436 		
32 698
Office adornment
         6 294
        18 705
Postage 														
12 147 		
72 229
Printing and stationery 													
236 968 		
382 034
Project expenses 													
277 134 		
4 118 775
Provision for bad debts adjustment 											
325 392 		
509 072
Refreshments 														
3 614 		
14 722
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Note(s) 		

2021 		
R 			

2020
R

Relocation expenses
        24 000
    Renovation expenses 													
277 543 		
2 044 192
Repairs and maintenance 												
11 592 		
70 943
Security 														
635 140 		
716 900
Staff recruitments 													
7 750
306 182
Staff welfare 														
203 115 		
221 757
Stakeholder relationship costs
                        431 644
Subscriptions 														
43 769 		
80 761
Telephone and fax 													
436 103 		
597 246
Training 														
34 500 		
83 089
Travel - local
      102 926
      502 472
															 32 962 454 		 41 223 024
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Physical Address
Suite 2305. Embassy Building
199 Anton Lembede Street
Durban, 4001
South Africa
Telephone Number
+27 31 368 1207 / 3822 / 3878

Postal Address
Postnet Suite 02
Private Bag X504
Northway, 4065

Email				
Info@natci.org.za

Fax Number					
+27 31 368 1205

